#### CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

					AND TRANSMITTAL TE SURVEY AGENCY		E9S2 ity ID: 00974
1. MEDICARE/MEDICAID PROVIDIO (L1) 245307 2.STATE VENDOR OR MEDICAID NO (L2) 458430000		3. NAME AND ADDRESS OF FACILITY (L3) CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CEN (L4) 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAS (L5) BAGLEY, MN				3. Termination 5. Validation	7 (L8) 2. Recertification 4. CHOW 6. Complaint
5. EFFECTIVE DATE CHANGE OF C (L9) <b>01/01/2008</b>		7. PROVIDER/SU	05 HHA	09 ESRD	02 (L7) 13 PTIP 22 CL1A	7. On-Site Visit  8. Full Survey After Compl	9. Other
6. DATE OF SURVEY 01/ 8. ACCREDITATION STATUS: 0 Unaccredited 1 TJC 2 AOA 3 Other	15/2019 (L34) (L10)	02 SNF/NF/Dual 03 SNF/NF/Distinct 04 SNF	06 PRTF 07 X-Ray 08 OPT/SP	10 NF 11 ICF/IID 12 RHC	14 CORF 15 ASC 16 HOSPICE	FISCAL YEAR ENDING DA	ATE: (L35)
11LTC PERIOD OF CERTIFICATION From (a): To (b):  12.Total Facility Beds	47 (L18)	Complian		S:	And/Or Approved Waivers Of Th2. Technical Personnel3. 24 Hour RN4. 7-Day RN (Rural SNF	6. Scope of Services 7. Medical Director	
13.Total Certified Beds	<b>47</b> (L17)		mpliance with Prog and/or Applied Wa	_	5. Life Safety Code  * Code: A	9. Beds/Room (L12)	
14. LTC CERTIFIED BED BREAKDO 18 SNF 18/19 SNF 47	OWN 19 SNF	ICF	IID		15. FACILITY MEETS 1861 (e) (1) or 1861 (j) (1):	(L15)	
16. STATE SURVEY AGENCY REM.  17. SURVEYOR SIGNATURE	ARKS (IF APPLICABL	E SHOW LTC CANCI	ELLATION DATE	Ξ):	18. STATE SURVEY AGENCY A	APPROVAL	Date:
Lyla Burkman, Unit Si	upervisor	(	01/29/2019	(L19)	Joanne Simon. Enforce	ment Specialist	01/29/2019 <sub>(L20</sub>
	PART II - TO BE	COMPLETED	BY HCFA R	EGIONAI	OFFICE OR SINGLE ST	ATE AGENCY	
DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBIL      1. Facility is Eligible to     2. Facility is not Eligible	Participate		MPLIANCE WITH GHTS ACT:	I CIVIL		ncial Solvency (HCFA-2572) ol Interest Disclosure Stmt (HCFA	1513)
22. ORIGINAL DATE  OF PARTICIPATION  03/01/1986	23. LTC AGREEM BEGINNING		4. LTC AGREEN		26. TERMINATION ACTION:           VOLUNTARY         00           01-Merger, Closure	(L30) <u>INVOLUNTAR</u> 05-Fail to Meet	<u>Y</u>
(L24)	(L41)		(L25)		02-Dissatisfaction W/ Reimburseme 03-Risk of Involuntary Termination	ent 06-Fail to Meet	-
25. LTC EXTENSION DATE: (L27)	ALTERNATIV     A. Suspension     B. Rescind Sus	of Admissions:	(L44)		04-Other Reason for Withdrawal	OTHER 07-Provider Stat 00-Active	us Change
			(L45)				
28. TERMINATION DATE:	29	. INTERMEDIARY/O	CARRIER NO.		30. REMARKS		

(L31)

(L33)

DETERMINATION APPROVAL

03001

01/29/2019

32. DETERMINATION OF APPROVAL DATE

(L28)

(L32)

31. RO RECEIPT OF CMS-1539



Protecting, Maintaining and Improving the Health of All Minnesotans

Electronically delivered January 28, 2019

Administrator Cornerstone Nsg & Rehab Center 416 Seventh Street Northeast Bagley, MN 56621

RE: Project Number S5307031

Dear Administrator:

On January 2, 2019, we informed you that we would recommend enforcement remedies based on the deficiencies cited by this Department for, a standard survey, completed on December 19, 2018. This survey found the most serious deficiencies to be widespread deficiencies that constituted no actual harm with potential for more than minimal harm that was not immediate jeopardy (Level F) whereby corrections were required.

On January 15, 2019, the Minnesota Department of Health, completed a Post Certification Revisit (PCR) by review of your plan of correction and on January 25, 2019 the Minnesota Department of Public Safety completed a PCR to verify that your facility had achieved and maintained compliance with federal certification deficiencies issued pursuant to a standard survey, completed on December 19, 2018. We presumed, based on your plan of correction, that your facility had corrected these deficiencies as of January 25, 2019. Based on our PCR, we have determined that your facility has corrected the deficiencies issued pursuant to our standard survey, completed on December 19, 2018, effective January 25, 2019 and therefore remedies outlined in our letter to you dated January 2, 2019, will not be imposed.

Please note, it is your responsibility to share the information contained in this letter and the results of this visit with the President of your facility's Governing Body.

Feel free to contact me if you have questions.

Sincerely,

Joanne Simon, Enforcement Specialist

Minnesota Department of Health

Licensing and Certification Program

Program Assurance Unit Health Regulation Division

Telephone: 651-201-4161 Fax: 651-215-9697

Email: joanne.simon@state.mn.us

cc: Licensing and Certification File



Protecting, Maintaining and Improving the Health of All Minnesotans

Electronically delivered

January 28, 2019

CMS Certification Number (CCN): 245307

Administrator Cornerstone Nsg & Rehab Center 416 Seventh Street Northeast Bagley, MN 56621

Dear Administrator:

The Minnesota Department of Health assists the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) by surveying skilled nursing facilities and nursing facilities to determine whether they meet the requirements for participation. To participate as a skilled nursing facility in the Medicare program or as a nursing facility in the Medicaid program, a provider must be in substantial compliance with each of the requirements established by the Secretary of Health and Human Services found in 42 CFR part 483, Subpart B.

Based upon your facility being in substantial compliance, we are recommending to CMS that your facility be recertified for participation in the Medicare and Medicaid program.

Effective January 25, 2019 the above facility is certified for:

47 Skilled Nursing Facility/Nursing Facility Beds

Your facility's Medicare approved area consists of all 47 skilled nursing facility beds.

You should advise our office of any changes in staffing, services, or organization, which might affect your certification status.

If, at the time of your next survey, we find your facility to not be in substantial compliance your Medicare and/or Medicaid provider agreement may be subject to non-renewal or termination.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Joanne Simon, Enforcement Specialist
Minnesota Department of Health

Minnesota Department of Health

Licensing and Certification Program

Program Assurance Unit

Health Regulation Division

Telephone: 651-201-4161 Fax: 651-215-9697

Email: joanne.simon@state.mn.us

cc: Licensing and Certification File

#### CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

#### MEDICARE/MEDICAID CERTIFICATION AND TRANSMITTAL

					AND TRANSMITTAL TE SURVEY AGENCY	ID Fa	: E9S2 cility ID: 00974
1. MEDICARE/MEDICAID PROVIDER NO. (L1) 245307 2.STATE VENDOR OR MEDICAID NO. (L2) 458430000 5. EFFECTIVE DATE CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP (L9) 01/01/2008		3. NAME AND ADDRESS OF FACILITY (L3) CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CEN (L4) 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST (L5) BAGLEY, MN  7. PROVIDER/SUPPLIER CATEGORY 01 Hospital 05 HHA 09 ESRD				4. TYPE OF ACTION:  1. Initial 3. Termination 5. Validation 7. On-Site Visit 8. Full Survey After Con	2 (L8) 2. Recertification 4. CHOW 6. Complaint 9. Other
6. DATE OF SURVEY 12/19 8. ACCREDITATION STATUS: 0 Unaccredited 1 TJC 2 AOA 3 Other	9/2018 (L34) (L10)	02 SNF/NF/Dual 03 SNF/NF/Distinct 04 SNF	06 PRTF 07 X-Ray 08 OPT/SP	10 NF 11 ICF/IID 12 RHC	14 CORF 15 ASC 16 HOSPICE	FISCAL YEAR ENDING 09/30	DATE: (L35)
11. LTC PERIOD OF CERTIFICATION From (a): To (b):  12.Total Facility Beds 13.Total Certified Beds  14. LTC CERTIFIED BED BREAKDO 18 SNF 18/19 SNF 47 (L37) (L38)  16. STATE SURVEY AGENCY REMAINSTANCE  Debra Vincent, H  19. DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILE	47 (L18) 47 (L17) WN 19 SNF (L39) ARKS (IF APPLICABLE) PART II - TO BE	X B. Not in Con Requirements  ICF  (L42)  E SHOW LTC CANCI  Date:  C COMPLETED  20. COM	nce With Requirements ce Based On: Acceptable POC mpliance with Progrand/or Applied Wai  IID  (L43) ELLATION DATE)	am wers: : (L19)		6. Scope of Servi 7. Medical Direc 8. Patient Room (12) 9. Beds/Room (L12)  (L15)  APPROVAL  reement Specialist	Date:
_X_ 1. Facility is Eligible to I 2. Facility is not Eligible	•	XX.	oms ner.		3. Both of the Above		111 1313)
22. ORIGINAL DATE  OF PARTICIPATION  03/01/1986  (L24)  25. LTC EXTENSION DATE:	23. LTC AGREEM BEGINNING  (L41)  27. ALTERNATI A. Suspension	DATE	4. LTC AGREEM ENDING DATI		26. TERMINATION ACTION:  VOLUNTARY 00 01-Merger, Closure 02-Dissatisfaction W/ Reimbursem 03-Risk of Involuntary Termination 04-Other Reason for Withdrawal	0 INVOLUNTA 05-Fail to Me ent 06-Fail to Me	et Health/Safety et Agreement
(L27) 28. TERMINATION DATE:	B. Rescind Sus	spension Date:  . INTERMEDIARY/0	(L44) (L45) CARRIER NO.		30. REMARKS	00-Active	
	(L28)	03001		(L31)			
31. RO RECEIPT OF CMS-1539	32	. DETERMINATION	OF APPROVAL DA	ATE			

(L33)

DETERMINATION APPROVAL

(L32)

PRINTED: 01/09/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:		` ′	PLE CONSTRUCTION  G	(X3) DATE SURVEY COMPLETED		
		245307	B. WING _		12/19/2018	
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER	AB CENTER	STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST BAGLEY, MN 56621			
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC)	TEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES  Y MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL  SC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREFIX TAG	PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECT (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOU CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPRO DEFICIENCY)	LD BE	(X5) COMPLETION DATE
E 000	Initial Comments		E 00	0		
F 000	Emergency Prepare conducted on Deceduring a recertificate compliance with the Preparedness Req INITIAL COMMENTON December 17, survey was comple Minnesota Departmyour facility was in 6 of 42 CFR Part 483	18, & 19, 2018, a standard ted at your facility by the nent of Health to determine if compliance with requirements B, Subpart B, and	F 00	0		
F 637 SS=D	Requirements for Long Term Care Facilities.  The plan of correction will serve as your facility's allegation of compliance. Since your facility is enrolled in the electronic Plan of Correction (ePOC), a signature is not required at the bottom of the first page of the CMS-2567 form.  Upon receipt of an acceptable ePOC an on-site revisit of your facility may be conducted to validate that substantial compliance with the regulations has been attained in accordance with your verification.  Comprehensive Assessment After Significant Chg		F 63	7 TITLE		1/10/19 (X6) DATE

Electronically Signed 01/08/2019

Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (\*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that other safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14 days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to continued program participation.

	OF DEFICIENCIES OF CORRECTION	(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:	l ` ′	TIPLE CONSTRUCTION		E SURVEY PLETED
		245307	B. WING		12/	19/2018
NAME OF F	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIE	R		STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP O		
CODNED	STONE NEC 9 DEI	JAD CENTED		416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAS	ST	
CORNER	STONE NSG & REI	1AB CENTER		BAGLEY, MN 56621		
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIEN	TATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES CY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREFI TAG	PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CO  X (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE DEFICIENCY)	N SHOULD BE	(X5) COMPLETION DATE
F 637	Continued From	page 1	F 6	37		
F 637	implementing star interventions, that one area of the receptive interdisc care plan, or both This REQUIREM by: Based on intervite facility failed to constitute the Minimum Date (R292) reviewed Findings include: R292's annual Mig/2/18, identified had diagnoses who (a progressive pobrain and spinal of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder). The Minimum Date (R292's quarterly Intervention of the lower extremity (bladder dysfunct disorder).	indard disease-related clinical thas an impact on more than esident's health status, and iplinary review or revision of the .)  ENT is not met as evidenced ew and document review, the emplete a Significant Change in int (SCSA) when two or more in resident status were noted on a Set (MDS) for 1 of 2 residents for pressure ulcers.  Inimum Data Set (MDS) dated R292 was cognitively intact and nich included Multiple sclerosis tentially disabling disease of the cord), paraplegia (impairment of ties) and neurogenic bladder ion due to nervous system DS also indicated R292 was at of urine with no appliances unhealed pressure ulcers.  MDS dated 11/23/18, identified ate cognitive impairment, had an er and was always incontinent of S further identified she had one	F 6	R292 MDS (Minimum Data 9/2/18 and 11/23/18 were resignificant Change in Statu was completed on R292 wi 12/21/18.  MDS Tracking Sheets have reviewed for all current resifacility for the last quarter wisignificant Changes noted, exception of those 6 reside Significant Change in Statu determined to be completed MDS Coordinators were results/19 on the criteria for OE assessments per the RAL with focus on Significant Chasessments. All residents will continue to be coded at MDS tracking sheets as we to previous MDS for significant charts, monitor resident ale messages as well as committed from the significant change is suspessionally will be completed Coordinator to determine if a Significant Change in Status.	eviewed and a s Assessment th an ARD of e been dents in the with no with the nts who had a s Assessment d. educated BRA Manual criteria, nange in Status is MDS criteria nd tracked on ell as compared cant change in monitor erts and nunicate with hanges. If a cted, ind by the MDS the criteria for	
	moderately impai incontinent with the always incontiner	red and a change from always ne use of no appliances, to it of urine and the use of an er. In addition R292's		Assessment is necessary. The MDS Coordinator or decomplete audits using MDS sheets and review of past a	esignee shall Stracking	

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES AND PLAN OF CORRECTION  (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:		(X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION  A. BUILDING		(X3) DATE SURVEY COMPLETED		
		245307	B. WING		12/	19/2018
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER	AB CENTER	STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP COD 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST BAGLEY, MN 56621		CODE	
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC	ATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES Y MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL .SC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREFIX TAG	PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CO (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE DEFICIENCY)	N SHOULD BE	(X5) COMPLETION DATE
F 637	assessments indicaunhealed pressure three pressure ulcomplete a SCSA in occurred for the resumual MDS of 9/2 11/23/18, and indicated from cognitive impairment this a change. MD of the urinary cathed this was one change 9/2/18. In addition, assumed that the pridentified on the pridentified on the pridentified on the pridentified of both the annual MDSC-A confirmed of both the annual MDSC-A confirmed SCSA due to the two which included the and the stage 3 presents and completed at the times and completed at the times and completed at the times and the stage of the pridentified of both the annual MDSC-A confirmed SCSA due to the two which included the and the stage 3 presents and confirme completed at the times and the stage of the pridentified of both the annual MDS and confirmed SCSA for residents. The Enot have a policy of SCSA for residents	ated a change from no ulcers to an unhealed stage er.  20 a.m. MDS coordinator her usual practice was to f two or more changes sident. MDSC-A reviewed the /18, and quarterly MDS of lated R292's cognition gnitively intact to moderate what therefore would not consider SC-A indicated she was aware ever placement and confirmed ge from the annual MDS of MDSC-A stated she had bressure ulcer had been evious annual MDS of 9/2/18, the previous MDS coordinator in the facility used for MDS R292 had a wound at the time and quarterly assessment. It is should have completed a law or changes identified for R292 use of an indwelling catheter essure ulcer.	F 637	OBRA Assessments for 3 r shall include all residents, t criteria is being followed for Change in Status Assessm findings shall be reported to Assurance Performance Im (QAPI) committee for further recommendations and more	to ensure RAI r Significant nents. All to the Quality nprovement er review,	



Protecting, Maintaining and Improving the Health of All Minnesotans

Electronically delivered

January 2, 2019

Administrator Cornerstone Nsg & Rehab Center 416 Seventh Street Northeast Bagley, MN 56621

RE: Project Number S5307031

Dear Administrator:

On December 19, 2018, a standard survey was completed at your facility by the Minnesota Departments of Health and Public Safety, to determine if your facility was in compliance with Federal participation requirements for skilled nursing facilities and/or nursing facilities participating in the Medicare and/or Medicaid programs.

This survey found the most serious deficiencies in your facility to be widespread deficiencies that constituted no actual harm with potential for more than minimal harm that was not immediate jeopardy (Level F), as evidenced by the electronically attached CMS-2567 whereby corrections are required.

#### **OPPORTUNITY TO CORRECT - DATE OF CORRECTION**

The date by which the deficiencies must be corrected to avoid imposition of remedies is January 28, 2019.

#### **ELECTRONIC PLAN OF CORRECTION (ePoC)**

Within **ten (10)** calendar days after your receipt of this notice, you must submit an acceptable plan of correction (ePOC) for the deficiencies cited. An acceptable ePOC will serve as your allegation of compliance. Upon receipt of an acceptable ePOC, we will authorize a revisit to your facility to determine if substantial compliance has been achieved.

To be acceptable, a provider's ePOC must include the following:

- How corrective action will be accomplished for those residents found to have been affected by the deficient practice.
- How the facility will identify other residents having the potential to be affected by the same deficient practice.
- What measures will be put into place, or systemic changes made, to ensure that the deficient practice will not recur.
- How the facility will monitor its corrective actions to ensure that the deficient practice is being corrected and will not recur.
- The date that each deficiency will be corrected.
- An electronic acknowledgement signature and date by an official facility representative.

Cornerstone Nsg & Rehab Center January 2, 2019 Page 2

The state agency may, in lieu of a revisit, determine correction and compliance by accepting the facility's ePoC if the ePoC is reasonable, addresses the problem and provides evidence that the corrective action has occurred.

If an acceptable ePoC is not received within 10 calendar days from the receipt of this letter, we will recommend to the CMS Region V Office that one or more of the following remedies be imposed:

- Discretionary denial of payment for new Medicare and Medicaid admissions (42 CFR 88.417 (a));
- Per day civil money penalty (42 CFR 488.430 through 488.444).

Failure to submit an acceptable ePoC could also result in the termination of your facility's Medicare and/or Medicaid agreement (488.456(b)).

#### DEPARTMENT CONTACT

Questions regarding this letter and all documents submitted as a response to the resident care deficiencies (those preceded by an "F" tag) and emergency preparedness deficiencies (those preceded by an "E" tag), i.e., the plan of correction should be directed to:

Lyla Burkman, Unit Supervisor Bemidji Survey Team Licensing and Certification Program Health Regulation Division Minnesota Department of Health 705 5th Street Northwest, Suite A Bemidji, Minnesota 56601-2933 Email: lyla.burkman@state.mn.us Phone: (218) 308-2104

Fax: (218) 308-2122

#### PRESUMPTION OF COMPLIANCE - CREDIBLE ALLEGATION OF COMPLIANCE

The facility's ePoC will serve as your allegation of compliance upon the Department's acceptance. In order for your allegation of compliance to be acceptable to the Department, the ePoC must meet the criteria listed in the plan of correction section above. You will be notified by the Minnesota Department of Health, Licensing and Certification Program staff and/or the Department of Public Safety, State Fire Marshal Division staff, if your ePoC for the respective deficiencies (if any) is acceptable.

#### **VERIFICATION OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE**

Upon receipt of an acceptable ePoC, a Post Certification Revisit (PCR), of your facility will be conducted to validate that substantial compliance with the regulations has been attained in accordance with your verification.

Cornerstone Nsg & Rehab Center January 2, 2019 Page 3

If substantial compliance has been achieved, certification of your facility in the Medicare and/or Medicaid program(s) will be continued and remedies will not be imposed. Compliance is certified as of the latest correction date on the approved ePoC, unless it is determined that either correction actually occurred between the latest correction date on the ePoC and the date of the first revisit, or correction occurred sooner than the latest correction date on the ePoC.

# FAILURE TO ACHIEVE SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE BY THE THIRD OR SIXTH MONTH AFTER THE LAST DAY OF THE SURVEY

If substantial compliance with the regulations is not verified by March 19, 2019 (three months after the identification of noncompliance), the CMS Region V Office must deny payment for new admissions as mandated by the Social Security Act (the Act) at Sections 1819(h)(2)(D) and 1919(h)(2)(C) and Federal regulations at 42 CFR Section 488.417(b).

In addition, if substantial compliance with the regulations is not verified by June 19, 2019 (six months after the identification of noncompliance) your provider agreement will be terminated. This action is mandated by the Social Security Act at Sections 1819(h)(2)(C) and 1919(h)(3)(D) and Federal regulations at 42 CFR Sections 488.412 and 488.456.

Please note that this notice does not constitute formal notice of imposition of alternative remedies or termination of your provider agreement. Should the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services determine that termination or any other remedy is warranted, it will provide you with a separate formal notification of that determination.

#### INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION (IDR) / INDEPENDENT INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION (IIDR)

In accordance with 42 CFR 488.331, you have one opportunity to question cited deficiencies through an informal dispute resolution process. You are required to send your written request, along with the specific deficiencies being disputed, and an explanation of why you are disputing those deficiencies, to:

Nursing Home Informal Dispute Process Minnesota Department of Health Health Regulation Division P.O. Box 64900 St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-0900

This request must be sent within the same ten days you have for submitting an ePoC for the cited deficiencies. All requests for an IDR or IIDR of federal deficiencies must be submitted via the web at: <a href="http://www.health.state.mn.us/divs/fpc/profinfo/ltc/ltc\_idr.cfm">http://www.health.state.mn.us/divs/fpc/profinfo/ltc/ltc\_idr.cfm</a>

You must notify MDH at this website of your request for an IDR or IIDR within the 10 calendar day period allotted for submitting an acceptable electronic plan of correction. A copy of the Department's informal dispute resolution policies are posted on the MDH Information Bulletin website at: http://www.health.state.mn.us/divs/fpc/profinfo/infobul.htm

Cornerstone Nsg & Rehab Center January 2, 2019 Page 4

Please note that the failure to complete the informal dispute resolution process will not delay the dates specified for compliance or the imposition of remedies.

Questions regarding all documents submitted as a response to the Life Safety Code deficiencies (those preceded by a "K" tag), i.e., the plan of correction, request for waivers, should be directed to:

Mr. Tom Linhoff, Fire Safety Supervisor Health Care Fire Inspections Minnesota Department of Public Safety State Fire Marshal Division 445 Minnesota Street, Suite 145 St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-5145 Email: tom.linhoff@state.mn.us

Telephone: (651) 430-3012

Fax: (651) 215-0525

Please note, it is your responsibility to share the information contained in this letter and the results of this visit with the President of your facility's Governing Body.

Feel free to contact me if you have questions.

Sincerely,

Joanne Simon, Enforcement Specialist

Minnesota Department of Health Licensing and Certification Program

Program Assurance Unit Health Regulation Division

Telephone: 651-201-4161 Fax: 651-215-9697

Email: joanne.simon@state.mn.us

cc: Licensing and Certification File

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

(X3) DATE SURVEY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: COMPLETED A. BUILDING 01 - MAIN BUILDING 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST **CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER** BAGLEY, MN 56621 SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5) (X4) ID ID COMPLÉTION PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PRFFIX DATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE TAG TAG DEFICIENCY) K 000 INITIAL COMMENTS K 000 FIRE SAFETY THE FACILITY'S POC WILL SERVE AS YOUR ALLEGATION OF COMPLIANCE UPON THE DEPARTMENT'S ACCEPTANCE. YOUR SIGNATURE AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST PAGE OF THE CMS-2567 WILL BE USED AS VERIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE. UPON RECEIPT OF AN ACCEPTABLE POC. AN ONSITE REVISIT OF YOUR FACILITY MAY BE CONDUCTED TO VALIDATE THAT SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS HAS BEEN ATTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH YOUR VERIFICATION. A Life Safety Code Survey was conducted by the Minnesota Department of Public Safety. At the time of this survey, Cornerstone Nursing and Rehab Center was found not in compliance with the requirements for participation in Medicare/Medicaid at 42 CFR, Subpart 483.70(a), Life Safety from Fire, and the 2012 edition of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 101, Life Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 19 Existing Health Care and the 2012 edition of NFPA 99 Health Care Facilities Code PLEASE RETURN THE PLAN OF CORRECTION FOR THE FIRE SAFETY **DEFICIENCIES (K TAGS) TO:** Health Care Fire Inspections State Fire Marshal Division 445 Minnesota Street, Suite 145 St. Paul, MN 55101 (X6) DATE

LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE

TITLE

01/09/2019

**Electronically Signed** 

Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (\*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that other safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14 days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to continued program participation.

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES AND PLAN OF CORRECTION  (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:		1 ' '	IPLE CONSTRUCTION IG <b>01 - Main Building</b>	(X3) DATE SURVEY COMPLETED		
		245307	B. WING_		12	/19/2018
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER	AB CENTER	STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST BAGLEY, MN 56621			
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC)	ATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES Y MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL SC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREFIX TAG	PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORREC (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHO CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPF DEFICIENCY)	ULD BE	(X5) COMPLETION DATE
K 000	DEFICIENCY MUSE FOLLOWING INFO.  1. A description of to correct the deficiency.  2. The actual, or proceed and the responsible for compressible for compressibl	RRECTION FOR EACH IT INCLUDE ALL OF THE DRMATION: what has been, or will be, done iency. coposed, completion date.	K 00			
	an automatic sprin accordance with N Installation of Sprir	pletely sprinkler protected with kler system installed in FPA 13 Standard for the akler Systems. The facility has a with corridor smoke detection				

	OF DEFICIENCIES OF CORRECTION	(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:	1 ' '	LTIPLE CONSTRUCTION DING <b>01 - MAIN BUILDING</b>		TE SURVEY MPLETED
		245307	B. WING			2/19/2018
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER	AB CENTER		STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE 416 SEVENTH STREET NOR BAGLEY, MN 56621		
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC	ATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES Y MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL SC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREF TAG		ACTION SHOULD BE FO THE APPROPRIATE	(X5) COMPLETIOI DATE
K 000	common use spac NFPA 72 "The Nati	age 2 comatic smoke detection in all es installed in accordance with conal Fire Alarm Code".  apacity of 47 beds and had a es time of the survey.	K	000		
	The requirement a NOT MET as evide Hazardous Areas - CFR(s): NFPA 101	Enclosure	к	321		1/9/19
	having 1-hour fire fire rated doors) or system in accordar When the approve system option is us separated from oth partitions and door Doors shall be self and permitted to he protective plates the from the bottom of Describe the floor	are protected by a fire barrier resistance rating (with 3/4 hour an automatic fire extinguishing nce with 8.7.1 or 19.3.5.9. d automatic fire extinguishing sed, the areas shall be ner spaces by smoke resisting is in accordance with 8.4. E-closing or automatic-closing ave nonrated or field-applied nat do not exceed 48 inches				
	b. Laundries (large c. Repair, Mainten	Fired Heater Rooms or than 100 square feet) ance, and Paint Shops oms (exceeding 64 gallons) ons				

	OF DEFICIENCIES OF CORRECTION	(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:			E CONSTRUCTION D1 - MAIN BUILDING	(X3) DATE SURVEY COMPLETED	
		245307	B. WING	_		12/1	9/2018
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER	AB CENTER		4	TREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 16 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST AGLEY, MN 56621		
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC	ATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES Y MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL .SC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREFI T <b>A</b> G		PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTIO (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROP DEFICIENCY)	BE	(X5) COMPLETION DATE
K 324	(over 50 square feg. Laboratories (if Hazard - see K322 This REQUIREME by: Based on observate facility to maintain accordance with the (NFPA 101) section condition could allocorridor making it and efficient exiting of staff and visitors.  Findings include:  On the facility tour on 12/19/2018 observed fire stoppering the basement.  This deficient condensity for the basement.  This deficient condensity for the basement.  This deficient condensity for the basement.  Cooking Facilities CFR(s): NFPA 101  Cooking Facilities Cooking equipment with NFPA 96, State and Fire Protection Operations, unless residential cooking appliances such a toasters) are used cooking in accordans.	rage Rooms/Spaces et) classified as Severe et) NT is not met as evidenced ation and staff interview the a hazardous storage room in the 2012 Life Safety Code in 19.3.2.1.3. This deficient tow smoke or fire to enter the cuntenable and affect the quick g for an undetermined amount is.  between 9:00 am to 12:30 pm therevations revealed a wall theating duct that was not the din a one hour storage room dition was confirmed by the evice Director.  at is protected in accordance and and for Ventilation Control and of Commercial Cooking		321	The wall penetration near the headuct in the basement storage room sealed to ensure appropriate prote a 1-hour fire resistance rated fire to by the Environmental Services Supervisor. The Environmental Supervisor shall be responsible for monitoring of any other potential was penetrations and proper protection time changes are made to the facility physical structure.	n was ection by parrier ervices r vall	1/16/19

		(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:	1, ,			ATE SURVEY OMPLETED
		245307	B. WING			2/19/2018
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER			41	REET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 6 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST AGLEY, MN 56621	
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC	ATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES Y MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREFI TAG		PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE DEFICIENCY)	(X5) COMPLETIC DATE
K 324	Continued From page 4 compartments with 30 or fewer patients comply with the conditions under 18.3.2.5.3, 19.3.2.5.3, or * cooking facilities in smoke compartments with 30 or fewer patients comply with conditions under 18.3.2.5.4, 19.3.2.5.4. Cooking facilities protected according to NFPA 96 per 9.2.3 are not required to be enclosed as hazardous areas, but shall not be open to the corridor. 18.3.2.5.1 through 18.3.2.5.4, 19.3.2.5.1 through 19.3.2.5.5, 9.2.3, TIA 12-2			324		
	by: Based on observation facility failed to instance the cooking equipmed Safety Code (NFP 9.2.3 & NFPA 96 sepractice could allow could not reach the undetermined amount of the facility tour country to the facility tour safety facility for the facility tour facility for the facility tour facility fa	ention and staff interview the stall the protection devices of ment as stated in the Life A 101) 2012 edition section section 10.5.1. This deficient w for the spread of fire if staff e device, affecting an bunt of staff and visitors.			The ANSUL pull station in the main kitchen shall be relocated and appropria placed, by Blackduck Fire & Safety, to ensure there is greater than 10 feet distance from the cooking appliance to ensure ease of reach for staff. The Environmental Services Supervisor shabe responsible for monitoring the syster by ensuring it is maintained and inspect every 6 months.	ll n
	pull station was lot the cooking applia	dition was confirmed by the rvice Director. - Installation	К	351		1/25/19

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

(X3) DATE SURVEY (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION AND PLAN OF CORRECTION COMPLETED IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING 01 - MAIN BUILDING 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER **416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER** BAGLEY, MN 56621 SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION ID (X4) ID COMPLETION (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL **PREFIX** PRÉFIX DATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE TAG TAG DEFICIENCY) K 351 | Continued From page 5 K 351 Spinkler System - Installation 2012 EXISTING Nursing homes, and hospitals where required by construction type, are protected throughout by an approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 13. Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems. In Type I and II construction, alternative protection measures are permitted to be substituted for sprinkler protection in specific areas where state or local regulations prohibit sprinklers. In hospitals, sprinklers are not required in clothes closets of patient sleeping rooms where the area of the closet does not exceed 6 square feet and sprinkler coverage covers the closet footprint as required by NFPA 13, Standard for Installation of Sprinkler Systems. 19.3.5.1, 19.3.5.2, 19.3.5.3, 19.3.5.4, 19.3.5.5, 19.4.2, 19.3.5.10, 9.7, 9.7.1.1(1) This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced A double check valve shall be installed on Based on observation and staff interview the the main fire sprinkler riser between the facility failed to install The sprinkler system in accordance with the 2012 edition of the Life city input and the connection to the system by Johnson Controls Safety Code (NFPA 101) sections 19.3.5.1, (SimplexGrinnell). The TCU wing 9.7.1.1 and the 2010 edition of NFPA 13. The currently has a shut off valve on the TCU Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems. wing valve assembly. The Environmental This deficient practice could affect of 9 of 47 residents and an undetermined amount of staff Services Supervisor shall be responsible and visitors. for monitoring compliance and safety when changes are made to the facility fire Findings include: sprinkler system by maintaining annual sprinkler inspections are completed. On the facility tour between 9:00 am to 12:30 pm on 12/19/2018 observations revealed the main fire sprinkler riser was repaired incorrectly, it did not have a double check valve installed between the city input and connection to the system and

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

(X3) DATE SURVEY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION AND PLAN OF CORRECTION COMPLETED IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING 01 - MAIN BUILDING 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST **CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER** BAGLEY, MN 56621 SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5)(X4) ID ID COMPLÉTION (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX **PREFIX** DATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE TAG TAG DEFICIENCY) K 351 Continued From page 6 K 351 did not have a shut off valve for the horizontal branch for the TCU wing. This deficient condition was confirmed by the Environmental Service Director. 1/25/19 K 918 | Electrical Systems - Essential Electric Syste K 918 SS=F CFR(s): NFPA 101 Electrical Systems - Essential Electric System Maintenance and Testing The generator or other alternate power source and associated equipment is capable of supplying service within 10 seconds. If the 10-second criterion is not met during the monthly test, a process shall be provided to annually confirm this capability for the life safety and critical branches. Maintenance and testing of the generator and transfer switches are performed in accordance with NFPA 110. Generator sets are inspected weekly, exercised under load 30 minutes 12 times a year in 20-40 day intervals, and exercised once every 36 months for 4 continuous hours. Scheduled test under load conditions include a complete simulated cold start and automatic or manual transfer of all EES loads, and are conducted by competent personnel. Maintenance and testing of stored energy power sources (Type 3 EES) are in accordance with NFPA 111. Main and feeder circuit breakers are inspected annually, and a program for periodically exercising the components is established according to manufacturer requirements. Written records of maintenance and testing are maintained and readily available. EES electrical panels and circuits are marked, readily identifiable, and separate from normal power circuits. Minimizing the possibility of damage of the emergency power

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

(X3) DATE SURVEY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION AND PLAN OF CORRECTION **IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:** COMPLETED A. BUILDING 01 - MAIN BUILDING 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST **CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER BAGLEY, MN 56621** PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5) COMPLETION DATE SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES ID (X4) ID (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX **PREFIX** CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG TAG DEFICIENCY) K 918 Continued From page 7 K 918 source is a design consideration for new installations. 6.4.4, 6.5.4, 6.6.4 (NFPA 99), NFPA 110, NFPA 111, 700,10 (NFPA 70) This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced Based on observations and staff interview the An emergency shut off switch has been facility failed to provide emergency features in ordered and shall be installed on the accordance with the 2012 edition of the Life outside of the enclosure of the facility Safety Code (NFPA 101) section 9.1.3.1 and the generator by an electrical contractor. The 2010 edition of NFPA 110 section 5.6.5.6, the Environmental Services Supervisor shall monitor proper maintenance and testing Standard for Emergency and Standby Power Systems. This deficient practice could affect the of the generator weekly, monthly, and annually to ensure compliance and safety safety of an undetermined amount of staff if the in the event of an emergency. generator failed to shut down during an emergency. Findings include: On the facility tour between 9:00 am to 12:30 pm on 12/19/2018 observations revealed there was no emergency stop for the generator on the outside of the enclosure. This deficient condition was confirmed by the **Environmental Service Director.** 

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA (X3) DATE SURVEY (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION COMPLETED AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING 02 - 2015 ADDITION 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST **CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER BAGLEY, MN 56621** SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5) COMPLETION (X4) ID (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX PRÉFIX DATE CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG TAG **DEFICIENCY**) K 000 K 000 INITIAL COMMENTS FIRE SAFETY THE FACILITY'S POC WILL SERVE AS YOUR ALLEGATION OF COMPLIANCE UPON THE DEPARTMENT'S ACCEPTANCE. YOUR SIGNATURE AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST PAGE OF THE CMS-2567 WILL BE USED AS VERIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE. UPON RECEIPT OF AN ACCEPTABLE POC. AN ONSITE REVISIT OF YOUR FACILITY MAY BE CONDUCTED TO VALIDATE THAT SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS HAS BEEN ATTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH YOUR VERIFICATION A Life Safety Code Survey was conducted by the Minnesota Department of Public Safety. At the time of this survey, Cornerstone Nursing and Rehab Center was found not in compliance with the requirements for participation in Medicare/Medicaid at 42 CFR, Subpart 483.70(a), Life Safety from Fire, and the 2012 edition of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 101, Life Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 19 Existing Health Care and the 2012 edition of NFPA 99 Health Care Facilities Code PLEASE RETURN THE PLAN OF CORRECTION FOR THE FIRE SAFETY **DEFICIENCIES (K TAGS) TO:** Health Care Fire Inspections State Fire Marshal Division 445 Minnesota Street, Suite 145 St. Paul, MN 55101 (X6) DATE LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE TITLE

01/09/2019

**Electronically Signed** 

Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (\*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that other safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14 days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to continued program participation.

Facility ID: 00974

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

(X3) DATE SURVEY (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES COMPLETED AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A: BUILDING 02 - 2015 ADDITION 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST **CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER BAGLEY, MN 56621** PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5) COMPLETION SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES ID (X4) ID (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX **PREFIX** DATE CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG TAG DEFICIENCY) K 000 Continued From page 1 K 000 Or by e-mail to: FM.HC.Inspections@state.mn.us THE PLAN OF CORRECTION FOR EACH DEFICIENCY MUST INCLUDE ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 1. A description of what has been, or will be, done to correct the deficiency. 2. The actual, or proposed, completion date. 3. The name and/or title of the person responsible for correction and monitoring to prevent a reoccurrence of the deficiency The facility was inspected as two separate buildings due to the construction types and the entire facility is considered existing as of November 1, 2016 The Cornerstone Nursing and Rehab Center was built in 1968, is a 1-story building, with a partial basement and was determined to be of a Type II (222) construction. A 1 story building without basement addition was added in 2015 and was determined to be of Type V(111) construction. In 2016 an addition was added to the end of the west wing and was determined to be of a Type V (111) construction and is separated by a 2 hour fire barrier and the 1968 building was totally remodeled. The facility is completely sprinkler protected with an automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with NFPA 13 Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems. The facility has a fire alarm system with corridor smoke detection

	OF DEFICIENCIES OF CORRECTION	(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:	1 ' '		CONSTRUCTION 2 - 2015 ADDITION	(X3) DATE SURVEY COMPLETED	
		245307	B. WING			12/	19/2018
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER	AB CENTER		41	REET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 6 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST AGLEY, MN 56621		
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC	ATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES Y MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL SC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREF TAG		PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOUL CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROIDERICIENCY)	D BE	(X5) COMPLETIC DATE
K 222	common use spac NFPA 72 "The Nati The facility has a c census of 46 at the	omatic smoke detection in all es installed in accordance with onal Fire Alarm Code".  apacity of 47 beds and had a time of the survey.		222			1/4/19
	equipped with a latuse of a tool or key using one of the formal arrangements: CLINICAL NEEDS LOCKING Where special lock clinical security neonly one locking deeach door and prograpid removal of or locks; keying of all all times; or other sto the staff at all times to the staff at all times. SPECIAL NEEDS Where special lock safety needs of the Clinical or Security being met. In addit electrical locks that upon loss of power	d means of egress shall not be ch or a lock that requires the of from the egress side unless llowing special locking  OR SECURITY THREAT  In the edge of the patient are used, evice shall be permitted on evisions shall be made for the edge of the					

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

(X3) DATE SURVEY (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION AND PLAN OF CORRECTION COMPLETED IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING 02 - 2015 ADDITION 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST **CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER BAGLEY, MN 56621** SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5) ID (X4) ID COMPLÉTION (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PRFFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE PRÉFIX DATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE TAG TAG DEFICIENCY) K 222 | Continued From page 3 K 222 system and the locked space is protected by a complete smoke detection system (or is constantly monitored at an attended location within the locked space); and both the sprinkler and detection systems are arranged to unlock the doors upon activation. 18.2.2.2.5.2, 19.2.2.2.5.2, TIA 12-4 **DELAYED-EGRESS LOCKING ARRANGEMENTS** Approved, listed delayed-egress locking systems installed in accordance with 7.2.1.6.1 shall be permitted on door assemblies serving low and ordinary hazard contents in buildings protected throughout by an approved, supervised automatic fire detection system or an approved, supervised automatic sprinkler system. 18.2.2.2.4. 19.2.2.2.4 ACCESS-CONTROLLED EGRESS LOCKING ARRANGEMENTS Access-Controlled Egress Door assemblies installed in accordance with 7.2.1.6.2 shall be permitted. 18.2.2.2.4. 19.2.2.2.4 **ELEVATOR LOBBY EXIT ACCESS LOCKING ARRANGEMENTS** Elevator lobby exit access door locking in accordance with 7.2.1.6.3 shall be permitted on door assemblies in buildings protected throughout by an approved, supervised automatic fire detection system and an approved, supervised automatic sprinkler system. 18.2.2.2.4. 19.2.2.2.4 This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced bv: Based on observation and staff interview the The Environmental Services Supervisor properly placed a sign/label on the exit facility failed to ensure the proper labeling of exit door locking devices per NFPA 101, Life Safety discharge door with the locking device in Code, 2012 edition section 7.2.1.6.1 & 19.2.2.2.4. the memory care. The Environmental Services Supervisor shall be responsible This deficient practice could affect 7 of 47

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

(X3) DATE SURVEY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION COMPLETED AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING 02 - 2015 ADDITION 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER **416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER** BAGLEY, MN 56621 SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION ID (X5) (X4) ID COMPLÉTION (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL **PREFIX** PREFIX DATE CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG TAG DEFICIENCY) K 222 | Continued From page 4 K 222 for monitoring all egress doors by residents and an undetermined amount of staff completing monthly door security and visitors. inspections for compliance and safety. Findings include: On the facility tour between 9:00 am to 12:30 pm on 12/19/2018 observations revealed the exit discharge in the memory care has a delayed egress on the door that was not properly labeled. This deficient condition was confirmed by the Environmental Service Director. 1/25/19 K 351 K 351 | Sprinkler System - Installation SS=F CFR(s): NFPA 101 Spinkler System - Installation 2012 EXISTING Nursing homes, and hospitals where required by construction type, are protected throughout by an approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems. In Type I and II construction, alternative protection measures are permitted to be substituted for sprinkler protection in specific areas where state or local regulations prohibit sprinklers. In hospitals, sprinklers are not required in clothes closets of patient sleeping rooms where the area of the closet does not exceed 6 square feet and sprinkler coverage covers the closet footprint as required by NFPA 13, Standard for Installation of Sprinkler Systems. 19.3.5.1, 19.3.5.2, 19.3.5.3, 19.3.5.4, 19.3.5.5, 19.4.2, 19.3.5.10, 9.7, 9.7.1.1(1) This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced by: A double check valve shall be installed on Based on observation and staff interview the the main fire sprinkler riser between the facility failed to install The sprinkler system in

	TO TOTA WEDTONIA	& MEDICAID SERVICES		_		T TTO	0938-039	
	OF DEFICIENCIES DF CORRECTION	(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:	` ′	(X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION A. BUILDING <b>02 - 2015 ADDITION</b>			(X3) DATE SURVEY COMPLETED	
		245307	B. WING			12/1	19/2018	
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER	AB CENTER		4	TREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 16 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST AGLEY, MN 56621			
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC	ATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES Y MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL SC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREFIX TAG		PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE DEFICIENCY)		(X5) COMPLETION DATE	
K 918	Safety Code (NFP, 9.7.1.1 and the 20.5 Standard for the In This deficient practices and an example of the seriod of the facility tour on 12/19/2018 obstire sprinkler riser on the facility tour on 12/19/2018 obstire sprinkler riser on the city input and odd not have a double the city input and odd not have a shubranch for the TCU. This deficient concentrical Systems CFR(s): NFPA 101 Electrical Systems Maintenance and The generator or and associated equipment of the generator or and associated equipment of the process shall be process shall be processed in the process of	e 2012 edition of the Life A 101) sections 19.3.5.1, 10 edition of NFPA 13, The stallation of Sprinkler Systems. tice could affect of 9 of 47 undetermined amount of staff between 9:00 am to 12:30 pm ervations revealed the main was repaired incorrectly, it did check valve installed between connection to the system and toff valve for the horizontal J wing.  Hition was confirmed by the vice Director.  - Essential Electric System	K	918	city input and the connection to the system by Johnson Controls (SimplexGrinnell). The TCU wing currently has a shut off valve on the wing valve assembly. The Enviror Services Supervisor shall be responsive to the form on the system by maintaining an apprinkler inspections are complete.	e TCU nmental onsible ety cility fire	1/25/19	

PRINTED: 01/11/2019 FORM APPROVED OMB NO. 0938-0391

(X3) DATE SURVEY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION COMPLETED AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING 02 - 2015 ADDITION 245307 B. WING 12/19/2018 STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST **CORNERSTONE NSG & REHAB CENTER** BAGLEY, MN 56621 PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5) COMPLETION SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES ID (X4) ID (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX PRÉFIX CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG TAG DEFICIENCY) K 918 | Continued From page 6 K 918 under load conditions include a complete simulated cold start and automatic or manual transfer of all EES loads, and are conducted by competent personnel. Maintenance and testing of stored energy power sources (Type 3 EES) are in accordance with NFPA 111. Main and feeder circuit breakers are inspected annually, and a program for periodically exercising the components is established according to manufacturer requirements. Written records of maintenance and testing are maintained and readily available. EES electrical panels and circuits are marked, readily identifiable, and separate from normal power circuits. Minimizing the possibility of damage of the emergency power source is a design consideration for new installations. 6.4.4, 6.5.4, 6.6.4 (NFPA 99), NFPA 110, NFPA 111, 700.10 (NFPA 70) This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced bv: An emergency shut off switch has been Based on observations and staff interview the ordered and shall be installed on the facility failed to provide emergency features in accordance with the 2012 edition of the Life outside of the enclosure of the facility generator by an electrical contractor. The Safety Code (NFPA 101) section 9.1.3.1 and the Environmental Services Supervisor shall 2010 edition of NFPA 110 section 5.6.5.6, the monitor proper maintenance and testing Standard for Emergency and Standby Power of the generator weekly, monthly, and Systems. This deficient practice could affect the annually to ensure compliance and safety safety of an undetermined amount of staff if the in the event of an emergency. generator failed to shut down during an emergency. Findings include: On the facility tour between 9:00 am to 12:30 pm on 12/19/2018 observations revealed there was no emergency stop for the generator on the outside of the enclosure.

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES AND PLAN OF CORRECTION (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:		II.	IPLE CONSTRUCTION IG <b>02 - 2015 ADDITION</b>	(X3) DATE SURVEY COMPLETED		
		245307	B. WING_		12	/19/2018
	PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER	AB CENTER		STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 416 SEVENTH STREET NORTHEAST BAGLEY, MN 56621		
(X4) ID PREFIX TAG	(EACH DEFICIENC)	TEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES  / MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL SC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)	ID PREFIX TAG	PROVIDER'S PLAN OF COR (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE A DEFICIENCY)	SHOULD BE	(X5) COMPLETION DATE
K 918	Continued From pa This deficient cond Environmental Serv	ition was confirmed by the	K 9 <sup>-</sup>			